
 

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001   
Telephone:  1300 341 665  |  Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au 

Website: www.roc.gov.au 

29 January 2020 

Michael Donovan 
Secretary, Victorian Branch 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association 
 
Dear Secretary 
 
Re: – Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees Association, Victorian Branch - financial 
report for year ending 30 June 2019 (FR2019/144) 
 
I refer to the financial report of the Victorian Branch of the Shop, Distributive and Allied 
Employees Association. The documents were lodged with the Registered Organisations 
Commission (ROC) on 11 December 2019.   
 

The financial report has been filed. The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  
This involved confirming that the financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, 
s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been 
satisfied, all documents required under s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various 
disclosure requirements under the Australian Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting 
guidelines have been complied with.  A primary review does not examine all disclosure 
requirements. Please note that the financial report for the year ending 30 June 2020 may be 
subject to an advanced compliance review. 

You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  However I make 
the following comments to assist when preparing the next report. 

Donations disclosure 

As advised the balances of donations $1,000 or less and donations exceeded $1,000 at Note 
7 were incorrectly disclosed.  The 2019 comparative figures for these items must be correctly 
disclosed in the next report. 

Nil activity disclosures 

Reporting guideline 21 states that if any activity described within items 10-20 of the reporting 

guidelines has not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect1 must be included 

in the financial statements, notes to the financial statements or an officer’s declaration 

statement. The officer’s declaration statement provides reporting units with an option to 

disclose nil activities not reported elsewhere. Nil activities only have to be disclosed once. I 

note that the officer’s declaration statement included disclosures for which there was an 

equivalent disclosure in the body of the notes (as indicated): 

 RG14(f)(iv) – pay separation and redundancy to office holders [Note 7] 

 RG14(k) - pay a penally imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009 [Note 
7] 

 

The officer’s declaration statement also included nil activity information in respect of RG17(d) 

– have a balance within the general fund.  Having regard to the definition of general fund in 

                                                
1 Or a nil line item balance as illustrated in the model financial statements 
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the glossary on page 11/13 of the reporting guidelines, it would appear that the balance of 

equity of $31,367,118 is the balance of the general fund and no nil activity information was 

applicable.  

Reporting Requirements 
The ROC website provides a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process 
and associated timelines.  The website also contains the s.253 reporting guidelines and a 
model set of financial statements.  The ROC recommends that reporting units use these model 
financial statements to assist in complying with the RO Act, the s.253 reporting guidelines and 
Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to this information is available via this link. 

If you have any questions about the above or the reporting requirements, please do not 
hesitate to contact me by email at stephen.kellett@roc.gov.au.  

Yours faithfully 

 

Stephen Kellett 
Financial Reporting 
Registered Organisations Commission 

~ J-, 

http://www.roc.gov.au/running-a-registered-organisation/financial-reporting
mailto:stephen.kellett@roc.gov.au


SHOP, DISTRIBUTIVE & ALLIED EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION, 
VICTORIAN BRANCH 

S.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Certificate by Prescribed Designated Officer 

Certificate for the year ended 2019 

I, Michael John Donovan, being the Branch Secretary-Treasurer of the Shop, Distributive & 
Allied Employees' Association, Victorian Branch certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Shop, Distributive 
& Allied Employees' Association, Victorian Branch for the period ended referred to in 
S.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 11 October 2019; 
and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the committee of management of the 
reporting unit on 4 December 2019 in accordance with S.266 (3) of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer: ..... &J.. ..... "J..~~ .... Y..~ 
Name of prescribed designated officer: Michael John Donovan 

Title of prescribed designated officer: Branch Secretary-Treasurer 

Dated: .......... f ....... P..E.~ ..... ?:-_(?. ./ .°!. ...................................................................................... . 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch} 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Operating Report 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

State Council presents its Operating Report together with the financial statements of the Victorian 

Branch of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association for the financial year ended 30 

June 2019 and the auditor's report thereon. 

1. Membership 

Membership of the Victorian Branch of the Association as at 30 June 2019 was 48,128. 

Persons eligible to do so under the rules of the Association were actively encouraged to join the 

Association. Persons join or resign through the Victorian Branch of the Association in accordance with 

Branch Rules 23 and 24. See also attached Section 174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. 

2. Employees 

Employee numbers at the Victorian Branch of the Association as at 30 June 2019 was 58 full-time 
equivalents. 

3. Committee of Management 

The members of the Committee of Management of the Branch during the financial year, unless indicated 

otherwise, were: 

Branch Secretary Michael Donovan 
Branch Assistant Secretary Patricia Connellv 
Branch President Ada Scibilia 
Branch Vice-President Sue Nance 
Branch Vice-President Debra Becker 
State Councillors Antonv Burke 
State Councillors Sue Hollinasworth 
State Councillors Simon Preest 
State Councillors Tammy Trimble 
State Councillors Bernadette Arathoon 
State Councillors Patricia Ryan 
State Councillors Michelle Wilton up to 9/7/18 
State Councillors John Giqliotti from 9/7/18 
State Councillors Nola Jones from 9/7/18 
State Councillors Kathy Cannon from 9/7/18 
State Councillors Peter Ericksen from 9/7/18 
State Councillors Bernadette Kerford up to 9/7/18 
State Councillors Julie Holland from 9/7/18 
State Councillors Ian Macpherson uo to 9/7/18 
State Councillors Jennifer Siwek uo to 9/7/18 
State Councillors Debra Tanner up to 9/7/18 

4. Affiliations & Directorships 

The Association is affiliated to the Australian Council of Trade Unions. 

The Association is affiliated to the Australian Labor Party (Victorian Branch) and Delegates from the Branch 
were credentialed to the ALP State Conference. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Operating Report (continued) 

5. Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the 
nature of those activities during the year 

The Association maintained its industrial awards and agreements at a high, up-to-date standard, and 

produced a range of publications for its members. 

The Association continued its significant campaign on Customer Violence & Abuse in Retail , Fast Food, called 

"No One Deserves A Serve". 

New enterprise agreements were negotiated with a range of employers including but not limited to 

Woolworths, Kmart, Big W, Bunnings, and a range of warehouse agreements. These agreements all resulted 

in improved wages and working conditions for the employees covered by them. 

The Association continues its defence of penalty rates in the Hair and Beauty Award and also protects other 

entitlements from attack by employers. 

The Association also promotes and protects members by participating in a range of legislative enquiries and 
reviews. 

During the relevant period the Branch represented and/or assisted its members in industrial matters at the 

workplace. It campaigned on the matters of public holidays, penalty rates on long service leave, accident 

make up pay and free and safe parking at shopping centres. 

The Branch provides a broad range of services to members including accident insurance, educational 

scholarships and discount movie tickets. 

The Victorian Branch maintained its rules and reported according to statutory requirements. 

A quarterly magazine is produced and posted to members of the Branch and periodic information and wages 

bulletins are posted to delegates and members. 

6. Significant changes in financial affairs 

There were no significant changes in financial affairs. 

7. Officers or members who are superannuation fund trustees or director of a company that is a 
superannuation fund trustee 

Joe de Bruyn, and Julia Fox, National Assistant Secretary (as of January 2018), are Employee Directors of 

the trustee company of the Retail Employees Superannuation Trust (REST). 

The Branch Secretary/Treasurer, Michael Donovan, is an Alternate Employee Director of the trustee company 

of the Retail Employees Superannuation Trust (REST). 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Operating Report (continued) 

8. Rights of meimbers to resign 

Section 174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 provides as follows: 

Section 174 Resignation from membership 

174 (1) A member of an organisation may resign from membership by written notice addressed and 

delivered to a person designated for the purpose in the rules of the organisation or a branch of the 

organisation . 

Note: The notice of resignation can be given electronically if the organisation's rules allow for this (see 

section 9 of the Electronic Transactions Act 1999). 

174 (2) A notice of resignation from membership of an organisation takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the organisation: 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the organisation: or 

(ii )on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the day when the member 

ceases to be eligible to become a member: 

whichever is later: or 

(b) in any other case: 

(i) at the end of 2 weeks, or such shorter period as is specified in the rules of the organisation. 

after the notice is received by the organisation; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

174 (3) Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of an organisation in relation to a period 

before the member's resignation from the organisation took effect, may be sued for and recovered in the 

name of the organisation in a court of competent jurisdiction, as a debt due to the organisation . 

17 4 ( 4) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in subsection { 1) is taken to have been received by 

the organisation when it was delivered. 

174 (5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the organisation is not invalid because it was 

not addressed and delivered in accordance with subsection ( 1 ). 

175 (6) A resignation from membership of an organisation is valid even if it is not effected in accordance 

with this section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the organisation that the resignation 

has been accepted. 

Michael Donovan 

Branch Secretary/ Treasurer 

Dated at Melbourne this 281h day of August. 2019 

Melbourne, Victoria 
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o sg_g Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Expenditure report required under subsection 255(2A) 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

The committee of management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) on the 
reporting unit for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

2019 - Expenditures as required under s.255(2A) 

RO Act 

f<e n1unf1 at ,c,n anc< c,tli€.1 
employme,ut-rel;;;ted LO~h cni.J 
e,,.1,1;;,,~e~ r-mployn-~ (4t',, 
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2018 - Expenditures as required under s.255(2A) 

RO Act 

Michael Donovan 
Branch Secretary/ Treasurer 
Dated at Melbourne this 28111 day of August, 2019 
Melbourne. Victoria 

Rr-,·,w11,,,,,1,,;m znd oth.-, 
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o sdg Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Committee of Management Statement 

On 28 August 2019 the Committee of Management of the Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association 
(Victorian Branch) passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPFR) of the 
Branch for the financial year ended 30 June 2019: 

The Committee of Management declares that in its opinion: 

a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards: 

b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines 
and Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act); 

c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and 
cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they 

become due and payable; and 

e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the organisation 

including the rules of a branch concerned: and 

ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with lhe rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the RO 
Act and 

iv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the reporting 

unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting 
units of the organisation; and 

v. where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or Commissioner 
duly made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the member or Commissioner; and 

vi. where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission 
under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee of management. 

Michael Donovan 
Branch Secretary/ Treasurer 

Dated at Melbourne this 28th day of August. 2019. 
Melbourne, Victoria 
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Shop1 Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Officer Declaration Statement 

I, Michael Donovan, being the Branch Secretary/ Treasurer of the Shop Distributive & Allied Employees· 
Association (Victorian Branch), declare that the following activities did not occur during the reporting period 

ending 30 June 2019. 

The reporting unit did not: 

• agree to receive financial support from another reporting unit to continue as a going concern (refers to 

agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount) 

• agree to provide financial support to another reporting unit to ensure they continue as a going concern 

(refers to agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount) 

• acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a restructure 

of the branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager, Fair Work 
Commission 

• receive revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity 

• pay capitation fees to another reporting unit 

• pay compulsory levies 

• pay separation and redundancy to hol.ders of office 

• pay separation and redundancy to employees (other than holders of office) 

• pay a penally imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009 

• have a separation and redundancy provision in respect of holders of office 

• have a separation and redundancy provision in respect of employees (other than holders of office) 

• have a fund or reserve account in equity for compulsory levies, voluntary contributions or required by the 

rules of the organisation 

• transfer to or withdraw from a fund or reserve account in equity (other than the general fund in equity), 

account, asset or controlled entity 

• have a balance within the general fund in equity 

• have another entity administer the financial affairs of Ille reporting unit 

• make a payment lo a former related party of the reporting unit 

Michael Donovan 

Branch Secretary/ Treasurer 

Dated at Melbourne this 281h day of August, 2019 

Melbourne. Victoria 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2019 

Gross revenue from membership subscriptions 

Capitalisation fees and other revenue from another reporting unit 

Other revenue 

Other income 

Share of net (loss)/surplus of associates accounted for using the 
equity method 

Impairment of investment in associates 

Affiliation expenses 

Delegate expenses 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 

Employment costs 

Employer commission expenses 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Member service expenses 

Office administration expenses 

Property expenses 

Other expenses 

(Deficit)/Surplus attributable to members 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Actuarial (loss)/gain in retirement benefit asseUliability recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to members 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

Notes 

6 

6 

10 

10 

7 

7 

7 

7 

16 

2019 2018 

$ $ 

14,417,494 14,345,371 

- -
643,491 764,414 

439,808 392,509 

(31,664) (106,063) 

- (126,189) 

(1,683,351) (1,559,099) 

(216,944) (276,068) 

(814,975) (834,872) 

(7,466,766) (7,190,816) 

(94,398) (410,160) 

(14,485) (3,363) 

(1,126,957) (1,092,707) 

(1,645,201) (1,489,822) 

(581,240) (503,186) 

(2,308,027) (1,435,388) 

(483,215) 474,561 

(805,662) 481 ,099 

(805,662) 481,099 

(1 ,288,877) 955,660 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Financial Assets 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Non-current Assets 

Investments accounted for using the equity method 

Trade and other receivables 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Retirement benefit asset 

Other non-current asset 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Provisions 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current Liabi lities 

Provisions 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

EQUITY 

Members' funds 

Total equity 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

Notes 

8 

9 

11 

13 

10 

9 

14 

15 

16 

13 

17 

18 

18 

2019 

$ 

6,181,244 

1,832,251 

15,125,187 

8,994 

23,147,676 

106,712 

-
9,878,694 

504,751 

843,097 

3,794 

11,337,048 

34,484,724 

639,361 

2,422,319 

3,061 ,680 

55,926 

55,926 

3,117,606 

31 ,367,118 

31 ,367,118 

31,367,118 

2018 

$ 

5,540,876 

1,636,662 

14,819,841 

4,479 

22,001,858 

138,376 

540,350 

9,933,875 

875,455 

2,185,542 

12,589 

13,686,187 

35,688,045 

464,584 

2,479,717 

2,944,301 

87,749 

87,749 

3,032,050 

32,655,995 

32,655,995 

32,655,995 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

2019 

Equity as at the beginning of the year 

Deficit attributable to members 

Other comprehensive loss for the year 

Total comprehensive loss for the year 

Equity as at the end of the year 

2018 

Equity as at the beginning of the year 

Surplus attributable to members 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Equity as at the end of the year 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

$ 

32,655,995 

(483,215) 

(805,662) 

(1 ,288,877) 

31,367,118 

31 ,700,335 

474,561 

481 ,099 

955,660 

32,655,995 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 30 June 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts from members and tenants 

Cash receipts from other reporting units 

Cash payments to employees and suppliers 

Cash payments to other reporting units, including affiliation fee 

Affiliation fees paid to other parties 

Interest received 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 

Payments to term deposits 

Payments for property, plant and equipment 

Acquisition of intangible assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 

Notes 

22 

14 

15 

8 

2019 2018 

$ $ 

16,354,925 16,358,191 

81,152 77,386 

(13,341 ,159) (12,975,070) 

(1 ,929,067) (1,876,755) 

(249,137) (283,053) 

432,575 509,575 

1,349,289 1,810,274 

81,195 141 ,323 

(305,346) (337,310) 

(484,770) (733,082) 

. (18,242) 

,1oa,921>l (947,311) 

640,368 862,963 

5,540,876 4,677,913 

a,1a1,244 I 5,540,876 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Reporting entity 
These general purpose financial statements cover the consolidated entity of The Shop, Distributive and Allied 

Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) and controlled entity (the 'Association'). The financial statements were 

authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the State Council on 28 August 2019. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Association in the preparation of 

these financial statements. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

a) Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) 

that apply for the reporting period, and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. For the purposes of 

preparing the general purpose financial statements, the Association is a not-for-profit entity. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost, except 

for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost 

is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 

allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position. 

b) Critical accounting estimates and significant judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires the Consolidated Entity to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

c) Functional and Presentation Currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the Association operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented 

in Australian dollars which is the Association's functional and presentational currency. 

d) Comparative Amounts 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current financial year. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

2, Basis of Preparation (continued) 

e) Use of estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MSBs requires management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties 

The present value of defined benefit obligations depends upon a number of factors that are determined on an 

actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for 

defined benefits include the discount rate and an apportionment of the assets and liabilities of the defined benefit 

fund between the Association and The Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 

Association (National Office), an entity which contributes to the fund on behalf of its employees. Any changes in 
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of defined benefit obligations. 

The Consolidated Entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate 

that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be required to settle 

the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Consolidated Entity considers the 

yield of long term corporate bonds that are denominated in Australian dollars and that have terms to maturity 

approximating the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. These discount rates are utilised gross of tax. 

Other key assumptions for defined benefit obligations are based in part on current market conditions. Additional 
information is disclosed in Note 16. 

• Note 16 - Defined benefit obligation. 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 

adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following note: 

• Note 18 - Employee benefits. 

Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Association's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 

financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Association has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant 

fair value measurements are overseen and reviewed regularly, including unobservable inputs and valuation 

adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values, the Association assesses the evidence 

obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of M SBs, 

including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. Significant valuation 

issues are reviewed by the Association's Committee of Management. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

2. Basis of Preparation (continued) 

e) Use of estimates and Judgements (continued) 

Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties (continued) 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Association uses market observable data as far as 

possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows. 

• Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

• Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the 

fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Association recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 
during which the change has occurred. 

3. New Australian Accounting Standards 

a) Adoption of new Australian accounting standards 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard. 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the following 

standard and amendment, which has been adopted for the first time this financial year: 

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments and relevant amending standards, which replaces AASB 139 Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 

Impact on adoption of AASB 9 

Initial application 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (AASB 9) replaces AASB139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement (AASB 139) for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three 

aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge 
accounting. 

The Association has applied AASB 9 prospectively, with an initial application date of 1 July 2018. The 

Association has not restated the comparative information, which continues to be reported under AASB 139. 

Differences arising from the adoption of AASB 9 would be recognised directly in opening retained earnings 
and other components of equity as at 1 July 2018 (of which there were none). 

15 



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

3. New Australian Accounting Standards (continued) 

a) Adoption of new Australian accounting standards (continued) 

Impact on adoption of AASB 9 (continued) 

(i) Classification and measurements 

Under AASB 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), 
amortised cost, or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The classification is based on 
two criteria: the Association's business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments' 
contractual cash flows represent 'solely payments of principal and interest' on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

The assessment of the Association's business model was made as of the date of initial application, 1 July 
2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal 
and interest was made based on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets. 

The classification and measurement requirements of AASB 9 did not have a significant impact to the 

Association. 

• Trade receivables and other non-current financial assets (i.e., loan to a related party) previously 

classified as loans and receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise to cash flows 

representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are now classified and measured as debt 

instruments at amortised cost. 

The Association has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no 

changes in classification and measurement for the Association's financial liabilities. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association {Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

3. New Australian Accounting Standards (continued) 

a) Adoption of new Australian accounting standards (continued) 

Impact on adoption of AASB 9 (continued) 

(i) Classification and measurements (continued) 

In summary, upon adoption of AASB 9, the Association applied the following required or elected 
reclassifications: 

1 July 2018 

AASB 139 measurement category 

Loans and receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Trade and other receivables 

Other current assets 

(ii) Impairment loss 

$ 

5,540,876 

14,819,841 

1,636,662 

4,479 

22,001,858 

AASB 9 measurement category 

Fair 
value 

through 
profit or 

loss 

$ 

Amortis!'!d 
cost 

$ 

5,540,876 

14,819,841 

1,636,662 

4,479 

22,001,858 

Fair 
value 

through 
OCI 

$ 

The adoption of MSB 9 has not significantly changed the Association's accounting for impairment 

losses for financial assets by replacing MSB 139's incurred loss approach with a forward looking 

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) approach. MSB 9 requires the association to recognize an allowance for 

ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and contract assets, i.e. those 

held at amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

3. New Australian Accounting Standards (continued) 

b) Future Australian accounting standards requirements 

New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and 

are applicable to future reporting periods that are expected to have a future financial impact on the 
Association include: 

(i) AASB 16 Leases (AASB 16) 

AASB 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces AASB 117 Leases, AASB Interpretation 4 Determining 

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, AASB lnterpretation-115 Operating Leases-Incentives and 

AASB Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 

For NFP entities, AASB 16 will commence from financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Either 
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for AASB 16. The 
Association plans to adopt AASB 16 on the required effective date 1 July 2019 of using the modified 
retrospective method. 

AASB 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases 
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the 
accounting for finance leases under AASB 117. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for 
lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a 
lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability 
to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying 
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise 
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. 

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a 
change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate 
used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement 

of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. 

Lessor accounting under AASB 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under AAS B 117. 
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in AASB 117 and 
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. 

During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the Association performed a preliminary assessment of 
AASB 16, noting no material leases are held by the Association where the Association acts as a lessee. 

(ii) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) and AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) 

AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NFP) 
entities in conjunction with AASB 15. AASB 1058 and AASB 15 supersede all the income recognition 
requirements relating to private sector NFP entities, and the majority of income recognition requirements 
relating to public sector NFP entities, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions. 

For NFP entities, both AASB 1058 and 15 will commence from financial years beginning on or after 1 
January 2019. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for 
AASB 15. The Association plans to adopt AASB 15 on the required effective date 1 July 2019 using modified 
retrospective method. 
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Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

3. New Australian Accounting Standards (continued) 

b) Future Australian accounting standards requirements (continued) 

(ii) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) and AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) (continued) 

During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the Association performed a preliminary assessment of 
AASB 1058 and AASB 15, noting no material changes to be expected, given the main revenue stream is 
for membership services provided. 

(iii) AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement 

The amendments to AASB 119 specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs 
during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to: 

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period using the actuarial assumptions used 
to re-measure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and 
the plan assets after that event 

• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount 
rate used to re-measure that net defined benefit liability (asset). 

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on 
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss. An 
entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. 
Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the 
beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early application 
permitted. 

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settlements reported for financial year ended 30 June 
201 9 and based on current conditions, there is no impact expected as a result of the introduction of this 
amendment. 
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and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant accounting policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements by the Association. 

a) Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Membership revenue (subscriptions) is recognised when the right to receive the subscription has been 
established and is gross of commission expenses incurred. During the current financial year major retailers 
have revised their commissions rates applied to revenue and at 30 June 2019 are expected to vary from 0-
2 .5%. Commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis and is recorded as an expense in the year to 
which it relates on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 
Commissions for the year ended 30 June 2019 were $94,398 (2018: $410,160). Employer commissions are 
required to be disclosed as per section 253 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Lease incentives provided to tenants under lease agreements are recognised as lease incentive 
assets and amortised over the life of the tenant lease. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day terms, are recognised at the nominal amounts due 
less any impairment allowance account. Collectability of debts is reviewed at end of the reporting period. 
Allowances are made when collectability of the debt is no longer probable. 

b) Finance income and finance costs 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues 
in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost 
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position. 

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other than those 
financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a 
method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the 
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

c) Gains 

Sale of assets 
Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has passed to the buyer. 

d) Affiliation fees and levies 

Affiliation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as an expense in the year to 
which it relates. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

e) Employee benefits 

(i) Defined benefit plans 

The Association's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Association, the recognised asset 
is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan 
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, 
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return 
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are 
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Association determines the net interest 
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used 
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined 
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the 
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related 
to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The 
Association recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefits 

The Association's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than defined benefit 
superannuation funds is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods plus related on-costs; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting 
date on Australian Corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Association's 
obligations in which the benefits are expected to be paid. 

(iii) Short-term benefits 

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting 
from employees' services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts and 
expensed based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Association expects to pay as at reporting 
date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax. Amounts that 
are expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured in accordance with long term benefits. 

f) Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

f) Leases (continued) 

(i) Lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, 
over the term of the lease. 

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and 
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

(ii) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 

At inception of an arrangement, the Association determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a 
lease. This will be the case if the following two criteria are met: 

• the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 
• the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s). 

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Association separates payments and other 
consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the 
basis of their relative fair values. If the association concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to 
separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value 
of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance 
charge on the liability is recognised using the Association's incremental borrowing rate. 

g) Cash 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held 
at call with the bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity of 3 months or less that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and 
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position. 

h) Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
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4. Significant accounting policies {continued} 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement (continued) 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash 
flow characteristics and the Association's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Association initially measures a 
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 
needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest' (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument 
level. 

The Association's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Association commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in five categories: 

• {Other) financial assets at amortised cost 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

• Investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

• (Other) financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 

The Association measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method 
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised, modified or impaired. 

The Association's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade and other receivables, term deposits 
held with the Westpac Banking Corporation ( see note 11) and cash and cash equivalents. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (ci::mtinued) 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

(iii) De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognised when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• The Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass­
through' arrangement; and either: 

f) the Association has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

g) the Association has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Association has transferred: its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 

transferred control of the asset, the Association continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent 
of its continuing involvement together with associated liability. 

(iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Impairment of financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

For trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, the Association applies a simplified 
approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECLs) which requires lifetime expected credit losses to be 
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

Therefore, the Association does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Association has established a provision matrix that is 
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
and the economic environment. 

(ii) Debt instruments other than trade receivables 

For all debt instruments other than trade receivables and debt instruments not held at fair value through 
profit or loss, the Association recognises an allowance for expected credit losses using the general 
approach. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Association expects to receive, discounted at an approximation 
of the original effective interest rate. 
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4. Significant accounting policies {continued) 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

(ii) Debt instruments other than trade receivables (continued) 

EGLs are recognised in two stages: 

• Where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, EGLs are provided 
for credit losses from possible default events within the next 12-months (a 12-month EGL). 

• Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is 
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the debt, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime EGL). 

The Association considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. 

However, in certain cases, the Association may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal 

or external information indicates that the Association is unl.ikely to receive the outstanding contractual 

amounts in full. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows. 

Financial liabilities 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised 
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Association's financial liabilities include trade and other payables. 

(i i) Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, trade payables and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss. 

(iii) De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. 

Share capital 

The Association is an unincorporated registered organisation under the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 and does not have share capital. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Association at exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 
the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign 
currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency 
at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the 
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss. 

i) Contingent assets and liabilities 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are 
reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or 
represent an existing liability or asset in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent 
liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote. 

j) Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset includes expenditures that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net 
within other income/other expenses in profit or loss. 

(ii) Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Association and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

j) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line or 
diminishing value over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
to most closely reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 
reasonably certain that the Association will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 

Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted as appropriate. 

Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable assets: 

Building structure and improvements 

Motor Vehicles 

Office equipment 

(iv) De-recognition 

2019 

2%- 20% 

28.57% 

0%- 33% 

2018 

2%- 20% 

28.57% 

0%- 33% 

An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss. 

k) Intangibles 

Costs incurred in developing computer software that will contribute to future period benefits through 

efficiencies are capitalised to software. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of material and service 

costs of IT consultants spent on the project. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over a period 

of 10 years. IT development costs include only those costs directly attributable to the development phase 

and are only recognised following completion of technical feasibility and where the Association has an 
intention and ability to use the asset. 

Amortisation rates apply to infinite intangibles such as computer software. 

De-recognition 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in profit 

and loss when the asset is derecognised. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

I) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Association's non-financial assets, other than investment property, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. A CGU is 
the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other 
assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset 
or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. Where 
the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset's ability to generate future 
cash flows, and the asset would be replaced if the Association were deprived of the asset, its value in use 
is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent 
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

m) Taxation 

The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 
however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services.tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, 
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables 
and payables are stated with the amount of GST excluded, as the Association reports to the ATO for GST 
on a cash-basis. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current 
asset or liability in the balance sheet. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 

n) Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Association has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 

The Association records provision for cancelled members based its reliable estimates. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

o) Fair value measurements 

A number of the Association's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured 
at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 12. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Association 
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment 
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes 
of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

p) Segment reporting 

An operating segment is a component of the Association that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with 
any of the other Association's other components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Association's office holders to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 
segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. 

q) Financial risk management 

The Association has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments: 

i) Credit risk 
ii) Liquidity risk 
iii) Market risk 

iv) Operational risk 

Risk Management Framework 

The National Executive has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk 
management framework. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and 
the Association's activities. The Association, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations. 

A detailed assessment of the Association's exposure to the above risks is included in notes 9 and 11. 

r) Basis of consolidation 

(i) Business combinations 

The Association accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is 
transferred to the Association (see (r)(ii)). The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally 
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually 
for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction 
costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities. 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss. 

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay 
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is 
not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is 
remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent 
consideration are recognised in profit or loss. 
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r) Basis of consolidation (continued) 

(ii) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Association. The Association 'controls' an entity when it is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control 
ceases. 

(iii) Non-controlling interests 

Non-controlling interest (NCI) are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree's 
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. 

Changes in the Association's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted 
for as equity transactions. 

(iv) Loss of control 

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost. 

(v) Interests in equity-accounted investees 

The Association's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates. 

Associates are those entities in which the Association has significant influence, but not control or joint 
control, over the financial and operating policies (see Note 1 (s)). 

(vi) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra­
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted 
investees are el iminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that 
there is no evidence of impairment. 
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

s) Investment in associates 

An associate is an entity over which the Association has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary 
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the 
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised 
in the statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the share of the profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the share of losses of an associate exceeds 
the interest in that associate, the Association discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional 
losses are recognised only to the extent that it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made 
payments on behalf of the associate. 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, 
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the share of the net fair value 
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition , after reassessment, 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

t) Parent entity financial information 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost. Dividends received from associates 
are recognised as revenue in the parent entity's profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of the investment. 

5. Events after the reporting period 

There were no events that occurred after 30 June 2019, and prior to the signing of the financial statements, 
that would affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of the Association. 
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6. Revenue and Other income 

Revenue and Other Income 

Other revenue: 

Interest revenue 

Other revenue 

Capitation Fees 

Levies 

Grants 

Donations 

(a) Interest received 

Interest on cash balances and short term deposits 

Interest on financial assets 

Total received 

Other income: 

Rental revenue for property 

7. Expenses 

(Deficit)/Surplus include the following specific expenses 

Depreciation: 

Buildings 

Motor vehicles 

Office equipment 

Amortisation: 

Software development - membership system 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

Affiliation fees: 

Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees Association (National 
Office) 

Australian Labor Party 

Notes 

(a) 

Notes 

14(a) 

15(a) 

2019 
$ 

432,575 
210,916 

643,491 

77,906 

354,669 

432,575 

439,808 

2019 

$ 

182,952 
216,392 

44,927 

444,271 

370,704 

814,975 

1,456,863 

226,488 

1,683,351 

2018 
$ 

509,575 

254,839 

764,414 

56,642 

452,933 

509,575 

392,509 

2018 

$ 

199,087 

227,623 

38,373 

465,083 

369,789 

834,872 

1,301,778 

257,321 

1,559,099 
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Employee benefits expense: 

Employee benefits expense related to holders of office .. : 
Salaries and wages 

Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 

Separation & redundancies 
Other 

2019 

$ 

376,030 
53,503 
8,765 

34,900 

473,198 

2018 

$ 

369,942 
33,801 

(47,434) 

49,582 

405,891 

*The holders of office of the association are Michael Donovan, Patricia Connelly, Ada Scibilia, Sue Nance and 
Debra Becker 

Employment benefits expense related to employees (other than holders of office): 
Salaries and wages 

Superannuation 

Leave and other entitlements 

Other 

Total employment benefits expense 

Other expenses: 

Fees/allowances - meeting and conferences 

Conference and meeting expenses 
Other expenses 

Total other expenses 

5,367,219 

605,668 

144,991 
875,690 

6,993,568 

7,466,766 

93,573 

248,811 
1,965,643 

2,308,027 

5,263,004 

509,176 

151,900 

860,845 

6,784,925 

7,1 90,816 

85,335 

185,602 

1,164,451 

1,435,388 

Consideration to employers for payroll deductions has been shown on the face of the Statement of Profit 
or Loss and other comprehensive income as commission expenses. 

Legal Costs: 

Litigation 

Other legal matters 

Total legal expenses 

Other expenses: 

Penalties - via RO Act or RO Regulations 
Total other expenses 

46,773 58,326 

46,773 58,326 
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Grants or Donations 

Grants: 

Total paid were $1,000 or less 

Total paid that exceeded $1,000 

Donations: 
Total paid that were $1,000 or less 

Total paid exceeded $1,000 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

2019 

$ 

292,605 

292,605 

8. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 

Cash at bank 

2019 

$ 

900 

6,180,344 

6,181,244 

Cash on hand is non-interest bearing, and as such is not subject to interest rate risk. 

2018 

$ 

43,912 

43,912 

2018 

$ 

900 

5,539,976 

5,540,876 

Cash at bank is subject to interest rate risks as it earns interest at floating rates. For cash at bank in 2019, the 

average floating rates were 1.30% (2018: 2.49%). 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is equal to the amounts disclosed above. 

(a) Sensitivity analysis 

A 100 point (2018: 100 point) increase in the BBSW at the reporting date would have increased the surplus 

by $61,800 (2018: $55,400), and an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased the surplus 
by $61,800 (2018: $55,400). 

9. Trade and other receivables 
2019 2018 

Note $ $ 
CURRENT 

Trade receivables (a) 1,355,657 1,248,382 
Prepayments 259,924 166,663 
other receivables (b) 210,739 214,891 
Amounts receivable from other reporting units - SDA National 

5,931 6,726 Office 
Less provision of doubtful debts 

1,832,251 1,636,662 

NON CURRENT 

Amount receivable from associates (c)1 540,350 

The carrying amounts of all trade and other receivables are equal to their fair values as they are short term 

receivables and non- interest bearing. 
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(a) Ageing and impairment losses of trade receivables 

Not past due 
Past due O - 30 days 
Past due 31 - 60 days 
Past due over 60 days 

(b) Other receivables 

Gross 2019 
$ 

1,352,280 

3,377 
1,355,657 

Impairment 2019 
$ 

Gross 2018 
$ 

1,238,663 

9,719 
1,248,382 

Impairment 2018 
$ 

Other receivables arise primarily from interest due from cash at bank. None of the other current receivables 
are impaired or past due. 

(c) Receivables from associates 

Based on the underlying net assets of these entities, an impairment losses of $540,350 has been recognised 

as it is expected that this amount will not be recovered (2018: nil). 

(d) Credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of all receivables less impairment, if any 
(excluding prepayments). 

The entity's most significant receivable from an employer of the members, a retailer, accounts for $606,883 
(2018: $538,930) of receivables at the reporting date. 

(e) Interest rate risk 

All current receivables are non-interest bearing. 

(f) Foreign currency risk 

The entity is not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

(g) Renegotiation ofterms 

No extension on credit terms have been given to customers during the year. 
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10. Non-current assets - Investments in Associates 

Investments in associates 

2019 

$ 

106,712 

2018 

$ 

138,376 

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method 

of accounting and are carried at cost less impairment by the parent entity. 

(a) Movements in carrying amounts 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 

Share of (loss)/profits after income tax 
Impairment of investments 

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 

(b) Summarised financial information of associates 

2019 

$ 

138,376 

(31,664) 

106,712 

2018 

$ 

370,628 

(106,063) 

(126,189) 

138,376 

The entity's share of the results of its principle associates and its aggregated assets (including goodwill) and 
liabilities are as follows: 

Group's share of: 
Ownership Assets 

Interest 
% $ 

2019 
Industrial Printing and 
Publishing Pty Ltd and 
controlled entities 23.9% 1,210,176 
2018 
Industrial Printing and 
Publishing Pty Ltd and 
controlled entities 23.9% 1,164,145 

All of the above associates are incorporated in Australia. 

Dividends received from associates were $nil (2018: nil). 

(c) Contingent liabilities of associates 

Liabilities 

$ 

(1 ,101,742) 

(1,025,756) 

There are no contingent liabilities or capital commitments of associates (201 8: nil). 

Revenues (Loss)/ Profit 

$ $ 

1,022,119 (31 ,664) 

985,541 (106,063) 
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11. Other financial assets 

Note 
CURRENT 

2019 

$ 

2018 

$ 

Held to maturity investments 

Term deposits (a) 15,125,187 14,819,841 ----- ---------Held to maturity investments 15, 125,187 14,819,841 

(a) Term deposits 

Term deposits bear fixed interest rates between 2.50%-2.62% (2018: 2.60%). 

(b) Interest rate risk - Sensitivity analysis 

The Association's investments in floating rate interest securities are not quoted on the Australian Stock 
Exchange. 

The Association's term deposits expose it to a risk of change in their fair value or future cash flows due to 

changes in interest rates. There are no financial assets where the fair value of the asset differs materially from 
the carrying value. 

A 100 point (2018: 100 point) increase in the BBSW at the· reporting date would have increased the surplus 

by $151 ,250 (2018: $148,200), and an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased surplus 
by $151,250 (2018: $148,200). 

(c) Credit risk 

Concentrations of risk 

The Association's investment in term deposits is in 5 term deposits issued by Westpac Banking Corporation. 

All investments were issued by entities rated 'AA-'. None of the held-to-maturity investments are either past 
due or impaired. 

Maximum exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the total of term deposits. 

12. Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

This note provides an update on the judgements and estimates made by the group in determining the fair 

values of the financial instruments since the last annual financial report. 

Valuation processes and fair values of other financial instruments 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial 

liabilities of the Group approximates their carrying amounts. 

The fair value of other monetary financial assets and financial liabilities is based upon market prices where a 

market exists or by discounting the expected future cash flows by the current interest rates for assets and 

liabilities with similar risk profiles. Non-interest bearing related party receivables are repayable on demand, 
thus face value equates to fair value. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities equates to their fair values at balance date. 
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13. Other Assets 

CURRENT 

Lease incentive asset 

NON CURRENT 

Lease incentive asset 

14. Property, plant and equipment 

Land & buildings at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total land & buildings 

Motor vehicles at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total motor vehicles 

Office equipment at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total office equipment 

Total property, plant and equipment 

(a) Movements in carrying amounts 

Land & 
Buildings 

$ 
2019 
Balance at the beginning of year 8,946,808 
Additions 329,485 
Depreciation expense (182,952) 
Disposals 
Carrying amount at the end of 
year 9,093,341 

2018 
Balance at the beginning of year 9,101,438 
Additions 44,457 
Depreciation expense (199,087) 
Disposals 
Carrying amount at the end of 
year 8,946,808 

Motor 
Vehicles 

$ 

866,890 
143,121 

(216,392) 
(95,680) 

697,939 

654,528 
584,610 

(227,623) 
(144,625) 

866,890 

2019 

$ 

8,994 

3,794 

12,609,618 

(3,516,277) 

9,093,341 

1,157,008 

(459,069) 

697,939 

757,184 

(669,770) 

87,414 

9,878,694 

Office 
Equipment 

$ 

120,177 
12,164 

(44,927) 

87,414 

54,535 
104,015 
(38,373) 

120,177 

2018 

$ 

4,479 

12,589 

12,280,133 

(3,333,325) 

8,946,808 

1,305,104 

(438,152) 

866,952 

1,273,586 

(1,153,471) 

120,115 

9,933,875 

Total 
$ 

9,933,875 
484,770 

(444,271) 
(95,680) 

9,878,694 

9,810,501 
733,082 

(465,083) 
(144,625) 

9,933,875 

An independent valuation was performed for the Group's premises on 30 June 2017 by m3property, an 

accredited independent valuer with a recognised and relevant professional qualification and with recent 

experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The valuation shows that the property 

has a market value of $12,000,000. The Association do not believe that there have been any changes in 

market conditions between the valuation date and the current year end date that would have an impact on the 
market value derived. 
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

(b) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for property, 
plant and equipment 

Rental income 

Direct operating expenses that generated rental income 

Total 

(c) Leasing arrangements for rental income 

2019 
$ 

439,808 

(643,640) 

(203,832) 

201 8 
$ 

392,509 
(503,186) 

(110,677) 

Excess space within the owner occupied property is leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with 
rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases not recognised in 
the financial statements are receivable as follows: 

Within 1 year 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 

Total 

2019 

$ 

329,440 

259,126 

588,566 

2018 

$ 

385,390 

245,840 

631 ,230 

The above leasing arrangements represent 39% of the total unit space, which is leased out to unrelated 
external parties at an arm's length transaction. The remaining 61 % of unit space is occupied by Shop, 
Distributive and Allied Employees. 

15. Intangible assets 

Software at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net carrying value · 

(a) Movements in carrying amounts 

Balance at the beginning of year 
Additions 

Amortisation expense 

Carrying amount at the end of year 

2019 

$ 

3,706,980 

(3,202,229) 

504,751 

875,455 

(370,704) 

504,751 

201 8 
$ 

3,706,980 

(2,831,525) 

875,455 

1,227,002 

18,242 
(369,789) 

875,455 
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16. Retirement benefit asset/liability 
2019 

$ 

2018 

$ 
NON-CURRENT ASSET 

Retirement benefit asset 843,097 2,1 85,542 

(a) Superannuation plan 

The Association sought Professional Financial Solutions to prepare a valuation report to assist with the 
measurement, recognition and disclosure requirements of MSB 119 Employee Benefits. The report covered 
the superannuation plan of The Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch), but 
also included members that are employees of the National Office. Apportionment of the amounts included in 
the report between the Victorian Branch and the National Office is based on the percentage of the 
superannuation asset attributed to each entity's members to the total superannuation asset. 

A different methodology in regards to the apportionment of the superannuation amounts could result in a 
change to the carrying value of the retirement benefit asset. Apportionment percentage as at balance date 
was 81.38% (2018: 82.38%). This is based on membership data as at 30 June 2019. 

(b) Plan characteristics and associated risks 

The Plan is a defined benefit superannuation fund providing lump sum benefits to members on retirement, 
resignation, death and total and permanent disablement. The benefits are based on the member's annual 
salary near retirement and the length of their membership of the Plan. The Plan is open to new members. 

Members may also have a defined contribution component of their benefit but, given that for such benefits the 
assets and liabilities are matched, these disclosures only relate to the defined benefit component of members' 
benefits. 

The Plan is a defined benefit sub-plan of the Retail Employees Superannuation Trust ("REST"), a regulated 
superannuation entity (RSE) subject to superannuation law, including the Superannuation Industry 
(Supervision) Act 2003 and certain sections of tax law, and the regulator is the Australian Prudential 
Regulation Authority (APRA). RSEs receive concessional tax treatment provided they comply with relevant 
law. 

There is a minimum funding requirement such that a member's benefit must not be less than the Minimum 
Requisite Benefit (MRS) as defined in the Superannuation Guarantee Charge (Administration) Act 1992. An 
actuarial Benefit Certificate specifies how the MRB is calculated and an actuarial Funding and Solvency 
Certificate (FSC) specifies the minimum level of contribution to be paid by the Association. Further, a new 
APRA Prudential Standard (SPS 160), which took effect from 1 July 2013, requires vested benefit short falls 
to be funded over a period not exceeding three years, unless APRA agrees to vary this requirement. 

Any net asset determined under MSB 119 may be used to reduce future contributions payable by the 
Association and therefore, such an asset may be recognised in the financial statements of the Association. 
Further, it is possible, under superannuation law, that the Association may receive a payment of any surplus 
assets from the Plan provided certain conditions are met, and, if this is the case, there is no asset ceiling as 
defined in paragraphs 64-65 of MSB 119. 
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16. Retirement benefit asset/liability (continued) 

The major risk of the Plan for the Association is that there is insufficient money in the Plan to meet the benefit 
liabilities and there may be a call on the Association to make additional payments. This situation may occur if the 
experience of the Plan is unfavourable relative to the assumptions used by the Actuary to determine the 
contributions to be made by the Association. Examples of unfavourable experience are lower than expected 
investment returns and higher than expected increases in member salaries. There is also a risk, albeit relatively 
small, that the Plan may be overfunded by contributions in excess of those required to fund benefits and the 
Association is unable to recoup any benefit from those overpaid contributions. The assets of the Plan are allocated 
across a number of asset classes and there is no particular concentration risk. 

Note 
(c) Statement of financial position amounts 

2019 

$ 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows: 

Fair value of defined benefit plan assets (e) 10,655,897 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (e) (9,81.2,800) 

(d) Movements in the net asset for defined benefit obligations 
recognised in the statement of financial position: 
Net asset/(liability) for defined benefit obligations at 1 July 
Contributions paid into the plan 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income - actuarial 
(losses)/gains 
Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income 
within personnel expenses 

Net asset/(liability) for defined benefit obligations at 30 June 

(e) Reconciliations 

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation: 
Balance at the start of the financial year 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Actuarial cost 
Benefits paid 

Taxes, premiums and expenses paid 

Balance at the end of the year 

Reconciliation of the fair value of the plan asset: 

Balance at the start of the financial year 

Return on plan asset 

Actuarial gains 

Employer contributions 

Benefits paid 

Taxes, premiums and expenses paid 

Balance at the end of the year 

843,097 

2,185,542 

(805,662) 

(536,783) 

843,097 

8,545,277 

456,165 

288,085 

1,070,961 

(351 ,562) 

(196,126) 

9,812,800 

10,730,819 

207,467 

265,299 

(351,562) 

(196,126) 

10,655,897 

2018 

$ 

10,730,819 

(8,545,277) 

2,185,542 

2,158,357 

481,099 

(453,914) 

2,185,542 

8,582,334 

972,921 

292,449 

185,355 

(1,374,098) 

(11 3,684) 

8 ,545,277 

10,740,690 

885,599 

562,655 

29,657 

(1,374,098) 

(11 3,684) 

10,730,819 
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16. Retirement benefit asseUliability (continued) 

(f) Expense recognised in profit or loss 

Current service costs 

Net interest costs 

(g) Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability/asset 

Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation 

(Gain)/Loss on assets 

Recognised in other comprehensive income/(expense) 

(h) Actuarial gains and (losses) recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Cumulative amount at 1 July 

Recognised during the period 

Cumulative amount at 30 June 

(i) Categories of plan assets 

The major categories of plan assets are as follows: 

Australian equity 

International equity 

Fixed income 

Property 

Cash 

Other 

(j) Principal actuarial assumptions 

2019 

$ 

456,165 
80,618 

536,783 

1,070,961 
(265,299) 

805,662 

721,489 
(805,662) 

(84,173) 

2019 

% 

17% 
23% 

6% 

9% 

8% 
37% 

The principal actuarial assumptions used (expressed as weight averages) were as follows: 

Discount rate 2.40% 
Future salary increases .._-~- 3.75% 

(k) Employer contributions and funding arrangements 

2018 

$ 

530,527 

(76,613) 

453,914 

185,355 

(666,454) 

(481 ,099) 

240,390 

481,099 

721 ,489 

2018 

% 

17% 

23% 

6% 

9% 

8% 

37% 

3.75% 

4.00% 

The Association contributes such amounts as are recommended by the actuary. Actuarial investigations are 
conducted at least every three years and the Association contribution rate is reviewed after allowing for the current 
financial status of the Plan and the value of benefits accruing in the future. The Association is currently on a 
contribution holiday. 

Estimated employer contributions 

(I) Effect of the asset ceiling 
The asset ceiling has no effect at this time. 

(m) Reimbursement rights 

2020 
$ 

There are no explicit reimbursement rights in the rules governing the Plan. However, under superannuation law, 
repayments from a defined benefit plan are possible provided certain conditions are met. 
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16. Retirement benefit asseUliability (continued) 

(n) In-house asset disclosure 

The fair value of Plan assets includes no amounts relating to any of the Association's financial instruments or any 
property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Association. 

(o) Asset-liability matching 

The Plan has no specific asset-liability matching. However, the asset allocation has been determined to provide 
protection from the risk of salary increases in that there is a significant component of the assets which are likely to 
increase with inflation. Investments in Australian and International shares and property are expected to increase in 
the long term, in line with inflation. 

(p) Sensitivity analysis 

The defined benefit obligation, calculated under various assumptions, has been presented below and reflect 
different potential results arising from changes in discount rates applied. 

Increase in net obligation for a 1 % decrease in the discount rate 

Reduction in net obligation for a 1 % increase in the discount rate 

17. Trade and other payables 

CURRENT 

Unsecured liabilities 

Trade payables 

Other payables 
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 

Legal costs - litigation 

Legal costs - other legal matters 

Payables to other reporting units 

2019 
$ 

768,227 

(672,199) 

2019 
$ 

257,795 

370,182 

11 ,384 

639,361 

2018 
$ 

687,049 

(602,198} 

2018 
$ 

227,522 

232,403 

4,659 

464,584 

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are current liabilities which results in their fair 
value being equal to the current carrying amount. 

(a) Liquidity risk 

The contractual maturities of all payables are 0-12 months. 
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18. Provisions 

Employee entitlements 

Employee provisions in respect to holders of office: 

Current 

Annual leave 
Long service leave 

Employee provisions related to employees (other than holders of office): 

Current 

Annual leave 

Long service leave 

Non-current 

Long service leave ( other than holders of office) 

Aggregate employee entitlements liability 

Other current provisions 

Provisions for cancelled member funds 

Total current provisions 

2019 

$ 

60,011 
274,963 

334,974 

669,940 
1,079,780 

1,749,720 

2,084,694 

55,926 

2,140,620 

337,625 

2,422,319 

2018 

$ 

56,443 

202,242 

258,685 

672,252 

1,048,780 

1,721,032 

1,979,717 

87,749 

2,067,466 

500,000 

2,479,717 
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19. Executive officers and key management personnel 

(a) Executive officers 

The following persons were executive officers of the Association during the financial year: 

Michael Donovan 
Patricia Connelly 

Debra Becker 
Sue Nance 

(b) Other key management personnel 

Ada Scibilia 

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the association, directly or indirectly through the year: 

Antony Burke Debra-Anne Warfe 

Suzanne Hollingsworth 

Simon Preest 
Tammy Trimble 

Bernadette Arathoon 

Patricia Ryan 

Michelle Wilton 

John Gigliotti 

Nola Jones 

Kathryn Cannon 

Peter Ericksen 

Bernadette Kerford ended 9/7 /18 
Julie Holland 

Ian Macpherson ended 9/7/18 
Jennifer Siwek ended 917/18 
Debra Tanner ended 9/7/18 
Scott Minion 
Christian O'Brien 
Stephanie Willmott 

(c) Compensation 

Salary 
Annual leave accrual movement 

Other expenses 
Short-term employment benefits 

Post-employment benefits -
superannuation 
Other long term benefits 

Termination benefits 
Any share based payments 

Korinea Hunter-Begbie 

Eileen Cotter 
Anne Johnstone 

Fiona Lee 

Particia Argus 

Kim Copley 

William Cuffley 

Gillian Madden 

Christine Morrison 

Nicole Small 

Trevor Libbis 
Leanne Zsarik 
Pauline Lethborg 
Madella Sumner 
KimWinzar 
Karl Carman 
Wendy Chadwick 
Cathy Dall'est 

2019 

$ 

705,452 

1,456 

192,473 

899,381 

105,818 

1,005,199 

201 8 

$ 

663,822 
14,701 

88,071 

766,594 

66,382 

832,976 

Each executive officer and relative of the officers of the Association has not acquired any material personal interest 
relating to the affairs of the Association during the year. 
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20. Auditor's remuneration 

Remuneration of the auditor of the consolidated entity for: 

Auditing the financial statements 

Financial report assistance 

Other audit services 

21. Related parties 

(a) Interest free loans to related parties 

2019 
$ 

108,000 

10,000 

5,000 

123,000 

2018 
$ 

100,800 

4,000 

3,700 

108,500 

The Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) and Controlled Entity, the ultimate 
controlling entity, has granted interest free loans to the controlled entity, FEDS DA Unit Trust, of which $9,000,000 
is receivable as at 30 June 2019 (refer to parent entity current assets at Note 24). These loans are without specific 
terms of repayment and are included in current receivables in the statement of financial position. 

(b) Transactions with associates 

Amounts received from Industrial Printing and Publishing Pty Ltd and Publicity Works Pty Ltd, a controlled entity of 
Industrial Printing and Publishing Pty Ltd, an associate, in relation to directorate duties performed by SDA staff and 
consulting services paid to Publicity Works Pty Ltd, split as follows: 

Directors fees paid to SDA 

Amounts paid to Publicity Works Pty Ltd, a controlled entity 

of Industrial Printing and Publishing Pty Ltd, an associate, 

for consulting services. 

(c) Transactions with controlled entity 

Amount of distribution payment from FEDSDA unit Trust as 

a subsidiary of the Shop, Distributive and Allied 

Employees' Association (Victorian Branch). This amount 
has been eliminated upon consolidation. 

Amount of rent paid to FEDSDA unit Trust as a subsidiary 

of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association 

(Victorian Branch). This amount has been eliminated upon 
consolidation. 

2019 
$ 

12,000 

86,564 

252,242 

636,000 

2018 
$ 

12,000 

84,107 

57,061 

408,000 
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21. Related parties (continued) 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

(c) Transactions with controlled entity (continued) 

Amount of secretarial fees paid by FEDSDA unit Trust as a 

subsidiary of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 

Association (Victorian Branch). This amount has been 

eliminated upon consolidation. 62,400 

(d) Transactions with the National Office 

Affiliation fees paid to the Shop, Distributive & Allied 

Employees Association (National Office). 1,456,863 1,301,778 

Reimbursement of Victorian payroll tax to the Shop, 

Distributive & Allied Employees Association (National 

Office). 87,082 75,351 

Reimbursement of expenses to the Shop, Distributive & 

Allied Employees Association (National Office). 296,834 404,363 

48 



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
and its controlled entity 

Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2019 

22. Cash flow information 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with 

(deficit)/surplus 

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year (483,215) 474,561 

Cash flows excluded from surplus attributable to operating 

activities 

Depreciation & amortisation 814,975 834,874 

Impairment of related party loan receivable 540,350 

Net loss on disposal of plant and equipment 14,485 3,363 

Share of losses of associates 31,664 106,063 

Impairment of investment in associate 126,189 

Non-cash defined benefit adjustment 536,783 453,912 

Changes in assets and liabilities 

(Increase) in receivables (191,309) (103,813) 

lncrease/(decrease) in payables 174,777 (201 ,000) 

(Decrease )/Increase in provisions (89,221) 116,125 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,349,289 1,810,274 

Cash flow information 

Cash inflows 

SDA National Office 81,152 77,386 

Total cash inflows 81,152 77,386 

Cash outflows 

SDA National Office 1,929,067 1,876,755 

Total cash outflows 1,929,067 1,876,755 
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23. Lease commitments 
The association leases various property, plant and equipment under long term operating leases. Minimum lease 
payments under non-cancellable operating leases not recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows: 

Within 1 year 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 

Total 

113,280 

113,280 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affect the 
operation of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Association in future 
financial years. 

24. Parent entity information 

The following detailed information related to the parent entity, Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 
Association (Victorian Branch), at 30 June 2019. The information presented here has been prepared using 
consistent accounting policies as presented in Note 1, except as follows: 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates 
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost. Dividends received from associates are 
recognised as revenue in the parent entity's profit or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of the investment. 

Summary financial information 

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts: 

Summary statement of financial position 

Current assets 

Non-current assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Members funds 

Total equity 

2019 
$ 

31,481,209 

3,927,908 

35,409,117 

3,032,536 

55,926 

3,088,462 

32,320,655 

32,320,655 

2018 
$ 

30,699,254 

5,974,312 

36,673,566 

1,738,509 

1,251,022 

2,989,531 

33,684,035 

33,684,035 
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24. Parent entity information (continued) 

2019 2018 
$ $ 

Summary statement of comprehensive income 

Surplus for the year (483,215) 474,561 

Other comprehensive income for the year (805,662) 481,099 

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,288,877) 955,560 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of FEDS DA Unit Trust, a 100% owned 
Australian property holding unit trust (2018:100%). 

25. Association details 

The registered office and principal place of business of the Association is: 

The Shop, Distributive, and Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 

Level 3, 65 Southbank Boulevard 

South bank VIC 3006 

26. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of 

members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner: 

1. A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed 
information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 

2. The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which , the 
information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given 
to the reporting unit. 

3. A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 ). 
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lndeoendent Auditor's Report 

To the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association 
(Victorian Branch) 

Report on the audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Report of 
the Shop, Distributive and Allied 
Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) 
(the Association). 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial 
Report presents fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 
Association (Victorian Branch) and its 
controlled entity as at 30 June 2019, and 
of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with: 

• the Australian Accounting Standards; 
and 

• other requirements imposed by the 
reporting guidelines and Part 3 of 
Chapter 8 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Basis for opinion 

The Financial Report comprises: 

• Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 
June 2019 

• Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, and Consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended 

• Notes including a summary of signif icant accounting 
policies 

• Other explanatory information including the 
Committee of Management Statement, Officer 
Declarat ion Statement and the Expenditure Report 
Required Under Subsection 255(2A). 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for 
the audit of the Financial Report section of our report. 

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
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Restriction on use and distribution 

The Financial Report has been prepared to assist the Committee of Management of the Shop, 
Distributive and Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) in complying w ith the financial 
reporting requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

As a result, the Financial Report and this Auditor's Report may not be suitable for another purpose. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Our report is intended solely for the Committee of Management and members of the Shop, 
Distributive and All ied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch) and should not be used by parties 
other than the Committee of Management and the members of the Shop, Distributive and Allied 
Employees' Association (Victorian Branch). We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any 
reliance on this report, or on the Financial Report to which it relates, to any person other than the 
Committee of Management and the members of the Shop, Distributive and All ied Employees' 
Association (Victorian Branch) or for any other purpose than that for which it was prepared. 

Other Information 

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in the Shop, Distributive and Allied 
Employees' Association (Victorian Branch)'s annual reporting which is provided in addition to the 
Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The Committee of Management are responsible for the 
Other Information. 

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report was the Operating 
Report. 

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information. In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent w ith 
the Financial Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other 
Information, and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained 
prior to the date of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report. 

Responsibilities of the Committee of Management for the Financial Report 

The Committee of Management are responsible for: 

• the preparation and fa ir presentation of the Financial Report in accordance with the financial 
reporting requirements of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 

• implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that 
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• assessing the Association's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the 
going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they 
either intend to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no realist ic alternative 
but to do so. 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objective is: 

• to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

• to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the Financial Report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: 
http://www.auasb.qov.au/auditors responsibilit ies/ar3.pdf. This description forms part of our Auditor's 
Report. 

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Opinion 

I declare that, as part of the audit of the financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the 
Committee of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association (Victorian Branch)'s financial report is 
appropriate. 

KPMG Amanda Bond 

Partner 

Tower Two, Collins Square 
727 Collins Street, Melbourne 

28 August 2019 

Registered Auditor - Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 
Act 2009, #AA2019/11 
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